CULTURE, HERITAGE AND LIBRARIES COMMITTEE

Monday, 28 May 2012

Minutes of the meeting of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 28 May 2012 at 11.30am

Present

Members:

John Scott (Chairman)

Vivienne Littlechild (Deputy Chairman)

John Bird

Deputy Dennis Cotgrove

Martin Day

Julian Malins

Robert Merrett

Sylvia Moys

Barbara Newman

Deputy Janet Owe

Martin Day Deputy Janet Owen
Deputy Billy Dove Ann Pembroke
Peter Dunphy Delis Regis

Deputy Anthony Eskenzi

Kevin Everett

Deputy Robin Sherlock
Deputy Michael Welbank

Brian Harris Alderman David Graves (Ex-Officio

Michael Henderson-Begg Member)

Oliver Lodge Deputy Catherine McGuinness (Ex-Officio

Member)

Officers:

Matthew Pitt - Town Clerk's Department
Mathew Lawrence - Town Clerk's Department
Mark Jarvis - Chamberlain's Department

David Pearson - Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries
Geoff Pick - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department

David Wight - Culture, Heritage and Libraries

Christopher Earlie - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department

Abigail Pogson - Spitalfields Music

1. **APOLOGIES**

Apologies were received from Mark Boleat, Tom Hoffman, Sherriff Wendy Mead, Alderman Dr Andrew Parmley, Henrika Priest and Alderman Fiona Woolf.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

Sylvia Moys declared a personal interest in item 15 as a trustee of the Spitalfields Festival.

3. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL

The Order of the Court of Common Council held on 19 April 2012, appointing the Committee and approving the Committee's Terms of Reference was received.

4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

The Committee proceeded to elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order No. 29. A list of Members eligible to stand was read and John Scott being the only Member expressing a willingness to serve was declared to have been elected as Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing year.

5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

The Committee proceeded to elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order No. 30. A list of Members eligible to stand was read and Vivienne Littlechild being the only Member expressing a willingness to serve was declared to have been elected as Deputy Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing year.

6. APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEES AND KEATS HOUSE CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk relative to the appointment of Sub Committees for the ensuring year (2012/2013).

The Town Clerk read a list of Members wishing to stand as representatives of the Keats House Consultative Committee, and with three Members indicating their willingness to stand for two positions, a ballot was taken and votes were cast as follows:-

Deputy Michael Welbank 17 Deputy Denis Cotgrove 15 Ann Pembroke 7

There being no further ballots it was,

RESOLVED – That the following memberships be agreed: -

Reference Sub Committee

Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)
Deputy Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)
Deputy Dennis Cotgrove
Deputy Billy Dove
Sylvia Moys
Barbara Newman
Ann Pembroke
Robin Sherlock

Benefices Sub Committee

Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)
Deputy Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)
Deputy Billy Dove
Michael Henderson-Begg
Oliver Lodge
Alderman Dr Andrew Parmley

Keats House Consultative Committee

John Scott – Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)

Vivienne Littlechild - Deputy Chairman of the Grand Committee (Ex-officio)

Deputy Dennis Cotgrove – representative of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee

Deputy Michael Welbank – representative of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee

Barbara Newman – representative of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee

Nigel Steward - Heath and Hampstead Society

Jim Burge - Heath Hurst Road Residents' Association

Diana Gore - Keats Grove Residents' Association

Lee Montague - Friends of Heath Library

Claire Palmer - South End Green Association

Martin Humphery - Hampstead Conservation Area Advisory Committee

Dr Sally Brown - Keats-Shelley Memorial Association

Susan Kirby - Friends of Keats House*

Marian Jolowicz - Friends of Keats House*

Dr Hillas Smith - Friends of Keats House*

Jean Haynes – Friends of Keats House*

Representative of the Keats Foundation – to be confirmed

7. MINUTES

The public minutes of the meeting held on 12 March were approved.

Matters Arising: -

<u>Transfer of Responsibility for Festival Funding Budgets and oversight of the Museum of London Spending</u>

The Chief Executive of Spitalfields Music advised that there could be ways of arranging a representative of the City of London Corporation to sit on the governing body of Spitalfields Music and that this would be investigated further.

Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department Business Plan 2012/13

The Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries informed Members that the requested draft paragraph for use in all relevant Business Plans relating to the provision of cultural activities by the organisation would be progressed in the context of developing the new Cultural Strategy.

^{*} to be reviewed once the Friends of Keats House have formally wound-up their organisation.

It was noted that an eBooks service had been launched by City Corporation's lending libraries.

It was noted that the City Surveyor would write to all Members of the Committee within two weeks of the meeting to explain the latest position regarding the screen at the base of the Monument.

8. CITY ARTS INITIATIVE

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk presenting the recommendation of City Arts Initiative Group which met on 10 April to discuss five applications to be placed around the City.

Members asked to be reminded where the funding for such art projects came from and whether the Streets and Walkways Committee had been asked for their approval of this report. The Town Clerk responded that applications for public art generally come with funding already attached and that the Streets and Walkways Committee would consider such applications as appropriate.

The Town Clerk stated that the application from Red Ball should be made subject to the City Surveyor being satisfied that there would be no negative impact upon the structure of the bridge.

RESOLVED: - That -

- (i) the Red Ball application be approved subject to the City Surveyor being satisfied that there would be no negative impact upon the structure of the bridge;
- (ii) a reduced scale BT Art Box scheme be approved with ArtBoxes located at New Change, Newgate Street, Bishopsgate (subject to TfL approval), subject to Planning Permission and resolution of technical issue to the satisfaction of the Director of the Built Environment; and
- (iii) the application to place the Pillar of Friendship in the green space at the junction of Little Trinity Lane and Queen Victoria Street be refused

9. USE OF LONDON METROPOLITAN ARCHIVES AS A CORPORATE DISASTER RECOVERY CENTRE

The Committee considered a report of The Chamberlain seeking Members approval to the use of London Metropolitan Archives as a Corporate Disaster Recovery Centre.

The Chairman stated that he preferred Option 1 (paragraph 7 of the report) which was to build a computer room of approximately 50m² adjacent to the existing IT computer room at the London Metropolitan Archives.

RESOLVED – That subject to the Outline and Detailed Options Appraisal approval of the Project Sub Committee and Resource Allocation Sub-Committee, the use of the London Metropolitan Archives as part of the City's critical disaster recovery infrastructure be approved.

10. TOWER BRIDGE

The Committee received a comprehensive presentation by the Visitor Development and Services Director of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department updating Members on the tourism element of Tower Bridge.

The Chairman thanked staff at Tower Bridge for their efforts.

Members queried whether consideration had been given to a ticket deal arrangement with the Tower of London & Historic Royal Palaces to which the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries responded that whilst the enthusiasm was not currently there for such a deal the City Corporation was on good terms with the both organisations.

A further query was raised as to whether the former Bridge Master's accommodation could be used as a honeymoon suite, particularly as weddings were already taking place at Tower Bridge. The Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries responded that a feasibility study assessing the demand for and costs of using the accommodation as a honeymoon suite was underway and that the matter would be considered once this had been completed.

Another query was raised regarding the capacity of the bridge to which the Director responded that last year they accommodated a footfall of 515,000 and that due to weight restrictions there was a limit of 250 people on the new walkway at a time. He added that even with this number and the Olympic ring installation there would be no safety concerns.

RECEIVED.

11. PROGRESS AGAINST CITY OF LONDON INVESTORS IN PEOPLE ACTION PLAN

The Board received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries informing Members on progress made against the Corporate Investors in People Action Plan.

The Chairman welcomed the report and requested that Intercoms, the Departmental Staff Newsletter, be emailed to all Members to keep them informed.

Members indicated that it was hard to note how the department was doing against targets from the current headings, to which the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries responded that there was a lack of precedent due to the newness of the report template but that he would consider Members' feedback when preparing future reports.

RECEIVED.

12. CULTURAL STRATEGY

The Committee received a verbal update of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries on progress made in formulating the Cultural Strategy of the City Corporation.

Members were informed by the Director that a draft Cultural Strategy had been completed and that the next stage of the process would be to send the document back to the internal Members group. He added that a new version of the Cultural Strategy would be taken to the next meeting of this group on 15 June 2012 and that he hoped the Cultural Strategy would be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee for endorsement.

RECEIVED.

13. TEN KEATS GROVE

The Committee received a verbal update of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries on developments at Ten Keats Grove.

The Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries informed Members that the City of London had assumed full responsibility for the former Heath Library premises (now known as Ten Keats Grove) from the London Borough of Camden on 16 April. Camden had completed their dilapidations work and the City had undertaken some improvements to the events space. He further informed Members that agreement had been reached and a license had now been issued for the Keats Community Library to run a community library on-site.

The Director also drew Members attention to the Keats Festival 2012 programme of events leaflets that had been laid around the table.

Members queried whether the license issued to the Library covered the costs of maintaining the building to which the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries responded that whilst the actual costs of running the building were still being calculated, the London Borough of Camden, as reported to this Committee at its meeting on 12 March, had estimated the premises costs for 2011-12 as £30,000. The Keats Community Library was currently paying an annual fee of £22,500 and the Director advised that he was looking to make up any gap through the hire of the excellent new event space.

RECEIVED.

14. KEATS HOUSE BUSINESS PLAN 201 1- 2012: QUARTER 4 REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries summarising progress made during the fourth quarter of 2011-12 in delivering the Keats House Business Plan. The report updated Members on the present position concerning Ten Keats Grove in relation to which the City had begun to develop its own programme of events and activities in support of the Keats House Charity. It further added that a license had been granted to Keats Community Library for it to run a library service on the premises.

RESOLVED – That this report be noted.

15. SPITALFIELDS MUSIC GRANT 2013 - 2015

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries seeking approval to fund Spitalfields Music for 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 with a grant of £45,000 per annum.

The Chairman welcomed the report and added that he was impressed with the money raising ability of Spitalfields Music and the accomplishments that schools and children had achieved through the organisation.

In response to a Members question, the Chief Executive of Spitalfields Music informed the Committee of a particularly successful project the organisation had undertaken where musicians had been taken into the Royal London Hospital for a period of 10 weeks to compose special lullabies with the intention of soothing difficult births and bringing new-born babies and their families closer together. She added that this project had provided some early evidence that music aided babies' recoveries.

RESOLVED – That the Finance Committee be recommended to fund Spitalfields Music for 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 with a grant of £45,000 per annum which represents a 10% cut to the previous level of grant to the organisation, in line with that applied to other City arts organisations.

16. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

1) Guildhall Bookshop (future plans)

In answer to a Member's question the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries responded that the future use of the space was being considered as part of a wider review that was underway examining how to make more effective use of areas of the Guildhall complex. He added that he would like to see the space used as a flexible space for seminars and networking events and that this would be a formalisation of what it was currently being used for.

The Chairman added that he would ask the City Business Library to give a presentation on their work at a future meeting.

2) Terms of Reference

In answer to a Member's question regarding the Committee's Terms of Reference, the Chairman agreed that the Committee should ideally be updated on the present position regarding each of the matters within their Terms of Reference by the end of each civic year.

3) Celebrate the City & Keats Festival Leaflets

Leaflets were laid around the table by the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries.

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

There were no urgent items.

18. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

<u>Item No.</u>	Exemption Paragraph(s)		
19 - 21	3		
22 - 23	-		

19. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2012 were approved.

20. RESOLUTION OF THE PROJECTS SUB-COMMITTEE OF THE POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

The Committee received a resolution of the Projects Sub Committee of the Policy and Resources Committee.

RECEIVED.

21. CAXTON'S POLYCHRONICON

This item was withdrawn from the agenda.

22. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

23. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no urgent items.

The meeting closed at 12.55pm		
 Chairman		

Contact Officer: Matthew Pitt tel. no.: 020 7332 1425

Matthew.Pitt@cityoflondon.gov.uk